
AMENDMENT NO. 1 
Dated: August 26, 2019 

 
City Council Agenda 
 
 
AUGUST 27, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

Mayor 
Amy Bublak 

 City Manager 
 Council Members Robert C. Lawton 
Nicole Larson Andrew Nosrati City Clerk 
Gil Esquer Becky Arellano  Jennifer Land 
Vice Mayor    City Attorney 
 Douglas L. White 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session items for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

 
 

 

SPEAKER CARDS:  To accommodate those wishing to address the Council and allow for staff follow-up, speaker cards are available 
for any agendized topic or any other topic delivered under Public Comment.  Please fill out and provide the Comment Card to the City 
Clerk or Police Officer.  
 
NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to 
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and 
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council 
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s 
consideration of the item.  Members of the public will be allowed three (3) minutes for comments. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 



Council Agenda 
     8/27/19 

Page 2 
 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 
This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 
3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  

PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 
 

A. Proclamation:  Turlock American Little League 10 Year Old All-Stars Team District 73, 
Section 6 Championship, accepted by Team Manager Courtney Keyler 

 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will 
be allowed three (3) minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be 
asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses the matter. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments 
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 
 
5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE 
 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving 
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Resolution:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 7/25/19 in the amount of $5,167,869.75; 

Weekly Demands of 8/1/19 in the amount of $1,810,284.40; Monthly Demands of 
5/31/19 in the amount of $2,143,839.42; Monthly Demands of 6/30/19 in the amount of 
$2,361,874.91 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Special Meeting of July 9, 2019; Minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of July 9, 2019 

C. Resolution:  Adopting a Resolution of Intent to vacate the 400 block of Third Street right-
of-way between “C” Street and “D” Street and notice of the public hearing 

D. 1.  Motion:  Awarding RFP No. 19-026 and approving an Agreement with Provost & 
Pritchard Engineering Group for Design, Engineering Services during Construction, and 
Construction Management for Wellhead Treatment, for a period of (3) years, with an 
option to extend the Agreement for (3) additional one-year terms, in a total amount not to 
exceed $988,800 over the 6-year term of the Agreement, if all renewal periods are 
exercised 

 2.  Resolution:  Appropriating $248,800 to account number 420-52-551.51393 “Wellhead 
Treatment” from Fund 420 “Water Enterprise” unallocated reserves to fund RFP No. 19-
026 for Design, Engineering Services during Construction, and Construction 
Management for Wellhead Treatment 

E. Motion:  Approving a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Stanislaus Business 
Alliance (Opportunity Stanislaus) for Economic Development and Workforce strategies 
for Fiscal Years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 



Council Agenda 
     8/27/19 

Page 3 
 

 

F. Resolution:  Appropriating amounts received through the Cannabis Business Pilot 
Program to recover all costs incurred by the City of Turlock or its vendors for time, 
materials, and expenditures associated with the Cannabis Business Pilot Program 

 
 
7. FINAL READINGS:  None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Request to introduce an Ordinance for first reading approving a Development 
Agreement by and between the City of Turlock and Fire House Cooperative, Inc. located 
at 1601 West Main Street, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel Number 
089-015-006  (White) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Ordinance:  Introducing an Ordinance for first reading approving a Development 
Agreement by and between the City of Turlock and Fire House Cooperative, Inc. located 
at 1601 West Main Street, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel Number 
089-015-006 

 
B. Request to introduce an Ordinance for first reading approving a Development 

Agreement by and between the City of Turlock and Fuego Azul, Inc. located at 495 
South Golden State Boulevard, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel 
Number 043-051-016  (White) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Ordinance:  Introducing an Ordinance for first reading approving a Development 
Agreement by and between the City of Turlock and Fuego Azul, Inc. located at 495 
South Golden State Boulevard, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel 
Number 043-051-016 

 
C. Request to introduce an Ordinance for first reading approving a Development 

Agreement by and between the City of Turlock and Cal State Ventures2 located at 501 
West F Street, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel Number 043-018-
006  (White) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Ordinance:  Introducing an Ordinance for first reading approving a Development 
Agreement by and between the City of Turlock and Cal State Ventures2 located at 501 
West F Street, Turlock, CA, County of Stanislaus, Assessor’s Parcel Number 043-018-
006 

 
 
9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Request to approve and authorize the execution of the Deed of Trust with Assignment of 
Rents, Security, and Fixture Filing, the Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of 
Restrictive Covenants, and Loan Agreement in the amount of Two Million Two hundred 
thousand Dollars ($2,200,000) of HOME funds as Financial assistance to EAH Housing, 
Inc. to develop an affordable multi-family housing project located at 500 West Linwood, 
Turlock (APN# 044-064-020) also known as Avena Bella Phase 2  (Pitt) 

 



Council Agenda 
     8/27/19 

Page 4 
 

 

Recommended Action: 
Motion:  Approving and authorizing the execution of the Deed of Trust with Assignment 
of Rents, Security, and Fixture Filing, the Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of 
Restrictive Covenants, and Loan Agreement in the amount of Two Million Two hundred 
thousand Dollars ($2,200,000) of HOME funds as Financial assistance to EAH Housing, 
Inc. to develop an affordable multi-family housing project located at 500 West Linwood, 
Turlock (APN# 044-064-020) also known as Avena Bella Phase 2 

 
B. Request to approve and authorize the execution of the First Amendment to the 

Disposition and Development Agreement, Estoppel Certificate, and any other supporting 
documents between the City of Turlock as the Housing Successor Agency and EAH, Inc. 
for the development of Avena Bella Phase 2  (Pitt) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Motion:  Approving and authorizing the execution of the First Amendment to the 
Disposition and Development Agreement, Estoppel Certificate, and any other supporting 
documents between the City of Turlock as the Housing Successor Agency and EAH, Inc. 
for the development of Avena Bella Phase 2 

 
C. STAFF IS REQUESTING ACTION ITEM 9C BE REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA. 

 
Request to establish the position of Deputy City Manager, approve the salary range and 
job description for the Deputy City Manager position, and authorize a related budget 
amendment for Fiscal Year 2019-20 for the salary and benefits for the Deputy City 
Manager position  (Lawton)  (White) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Establishing the position of Deputy City Manager, approving the salary 
range and job description for the Deputy City Manager position, and authorizing a 
related budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2019-20 for the salary and benefits for the 
Deputy City Manager position 

 
D. STAFF IS REQUESTING ACTION ITEM 9D BE REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA. 

 
Request to approve the updated salary range and updated job description for the 
position of Assistant City Manager and authorize a related budget amendment for Fiscal 
Year 2019-20 for the updated salary and benefits for the Assistant City Manager position  
(Lawton)  (White) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Approving the updated salary range and updated job description for the 
position of Assistant City Manager and authorizing a related budget amendment for 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 for the updated salary and benefits for the Assistant City Manager 
position 

 
 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 

City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s 
request. 

 
A. West Main Street Rehabilitation/Construction Project Update  (Bray) 

 



Council Agenda 
     8/27/19 

Page 5 
 

 

11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with the City of Turlock Elected 
and Appointed Officials’ Handbook (Resolution No. 2019-094), unless otherwise specified by the Mayor or a majority 
of the Council. 

 
 
12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of 
interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Closed Session Items have been agendized as part of the Special Meeting (scheduled at 4:00 p.m. on 
this date) as well as this Regular Meeting to allow for continued discussion if necessary. 
 

A. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 
“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 
(commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication shall 
be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 

Claimants:  Baljit (Bobby) Athwal, Navneet Athwal, Daljit Atwal, and Karan Inc., d/b/a 
Pop-N-Cork 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
B. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 
(commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication shall 
be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 

Claimant:  Yubert Envia 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
C. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95 

“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of 
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division 3.6 
(commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written 
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication shall 
be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.” 

Claimant:  Katherine E. Cravinho 
Agency Claimed Against:  City of Turlock 

 
D. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.9(d)(2) 

“For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the following 
circumstances exist...  A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the legislative body of 
the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, 
there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local agency.” 

Potential Case:  (1 case) 
 
 
14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 































































































































































































































FIREHOUSEFIREHOUSE

THE PREMIER GROUP

HGVPCF PHENOS
cu l t i va t i on

devin@thepremier.group

Request for Proposal



 

 

 
FIREHOUSE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

    

BUSINESS PLAN 1 

INTRODUCTION 1 

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 2 

A. PRINCIPAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION 3 

B. LEGAL OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 4 

ATTACHMENT: ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

ATTACHMENT: SECRETARY OF STATE STATEMENT OF INFORMATION  

C. PROPOSED BUSINESS LOCATION 5 

D. BUSINESS & OPERATION PLAN 7 

          ATTACHMENT: PATIENT CARE FIRST 2018 ANNUAL REVENUE  

E. PROPOSED PHILANTHROPY PLAN 9 

          ATTACHMENT: LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION  

F. PRELIMINARY FLOOR PLAN 12 

G. PRELIMINARY SECURITY PLAN 13 

PERSONNEL/PROJECT TEAM 15 

ECONOMICS 16 

 ATTACHMENT: SALES & USE TAX RECEIPTS  



INTRODUCTION - FIREHOUSE

Thank you for your consideration. We are Devin Stetler and Bert Sarkis, the two owners of The 

Premier Group comprising 16 state and local licenses and three currently operating dispensaries: 

Patient Care First in Ceres, Flavors of Riverbank, and Phenos in Modesto. These stores serve the 

Central Valley’s largest market share of cannabis patients and lead in both gross sales and developer 

agreement payments to each city. Recognizing the importance of mitigating the use of city services, 

we proudly have little to no calls for service at any of our locations. 

All of The Premier Group’s dispensaries are licensed as both adult-use and medical. To remain 

competitive, a dispensary should have both license types.  This request for qualification is for an 

adult-use and medical dispensary in the City of Turlock.

Based on the most liberal reports, 1 out of 3 people in the United States consumes cannabis.  By this 

estimation, 183,000 of the 550,000 Stanislaus County residents have used cannabis products. Our 

current patient count is 118,000 and growing. This means that our three stores currently serve 65% of

the overall market share in Stanislaus County.

Our rationale for applying in the city of Turlock is that over 7,122 of our current patients and 

customers reside in the City of Turlock. Bringing them and other Turlock residents a safe, legal, and 

convenient location would benefit these customers as well as significantly increase City revenue. Last

month alone, both the City of Ceres and Modesto received over $100k each from our dispensaries. A 

considerable portion of that revenue came from Turlock residents and should remain in the City of 

Turlock. 

Our organizational structure is continually evolving as we add elements necessary to stay ahead of 

the market. Part of our structure that provides a competitive advantage is having two on-site 

managers at all times and a District Manager overseeing all locations. We also have a dedicated 

compliance office with live video feeds of all stores which allows management to quickly test and 

understand effective strategies at one location and apply it to other locations immediately.

We have been working on the possibility of a Turlock license for over a year. We have located and 

secured a location that we anticipate will outperform our Ceres and Modesto dispensaries.  We 

developed plans, secured the contractors, and applied for a tenant improvements permit.  In 

addition, we have purchased all necessary displays counters, computers, security systems, etc. The 

required state license for operation is an “Adult-Use and Medicinal Retailer License”. Due to the 

Bureau of Cannabis Control backlog, we have pre-emptively submitted our state application for the 

City of Turlock and received a pending, placeholder status to expedite the 6-month wait. In our last 

application in the City of Modesto, we were ready to open within 7 days of city approval and hope to 

accomplish the same in the City of Turlock.

1   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary |  Introduction



2 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Organization Structure 
 

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE  

 

  

 
Strategic 

Committee 
Business 

Consultants 
Legal 

Consultants 

Regional Compliance 
Office 

District Manager 

Store Manager 

Assistant 
Manager 

Floor Manager 
Security Guard 

Inventory 
Manager 

Receptionist Budtender 



A) PRINCIPAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Principals

The applicants of this RFQ and principals of Firehouse are Devin Stetler and Bert Sarkis, 

owners of 16 approved state and local licenses and   three dispensaries   setting the industry 

example in every category since 2017. Both owners live in Stanislaus County and currently 

operate Patient Care First in Ceres, Flavors of Riverbank, and Phenos in Modesto. They will be 

opening dispensaries in Merced and Stockton in the summer and fall of 2019, respectively. 

Devin and Bert have demonstrated their knowledge and expertise over the past thirty (30) 

months by creating and operating the largest developer agreement fee-contributing 

dispensaries in Northern California, serving   over   118,000   patients and customers   as of June 15, 

2019. Gross sales determine city revenue and the best evidence of gross sales is sales tax 

receipts, thus these facts are evidenced by our sales tax receipts.

Devin and Bert’s team has prepared for the future of the industry by selecting strategic 

locations in the most densely populated areas of the Central Valley.  Their group has also 

secured four (4) distribution licenses and 167,000 sq ft of cultivation space to produce the most 

sought-after products and achieve vertical integration.

Devin and Bert’s dispensaries are often referenced during city counsel hearings throughout the

Central Valley due to their large payments made to Ceres, Riverbank, and Modesto.

Philosophy

Devin and Bert’s mission is to continue to reduce the illegal black market by competing at a 

low price point.  In addition to aggressive pricing, they will continue to offer unprecedented 

security, high-end exclusive variety, top quality brands, and exceptional customer experience. 

This will ensure a preferred alternative to black market, untested cannabis.  They have now 

been doing so for over two years and their market share demonstrates they have successfully 

created a model to win over local law enforcement, cities, and communities.  They also 

understand that their 16 licenses are not a right to do business, rather an opportunity to prove 

themselves and build successful partnerships within each city they operate. Many of the known

applicants have come to us for advice, capital, or compliance support. As part of a small 

cannabis community in its infant stages, we are happy to contribute and help others elevate 

the standard in this industry. 

3   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section A: Principal Background Information



B) LEGAL OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Firehouse Cooperative, Inc. dba Firehouse

1601 West Main Street Turlock, CA 95380

Officers

Devin Stetler

Equal Partner/ CTO

(209) 442-3244

devin@thepremier.group

2213 Patterson Rd.

Riverbank, CA 95367

Angilbert (Bert) Sarkis

Equal Partner/ CEO

(209) 996-5959

bert@thepremier.group

1442 Angie Ave.

Modesto, CA 95351

Firehouse Cooperative, Inc. is a corporation with two equal partners. 

The following affiliates are owned and operated by Devin Stetler and Bert Sarkis and together 
make up The Premier Group:

1)   Patient Care First (PCF) [Ceres] A + M Retail Since Dec 17, 2017

2)   Flavors [Riverbank] A + M Retail Since March 14, 2018

3)   Patient Care First Distribution [Ceres] A + M Distribution Since July 16, 2018

4)   Phenos [Modesto] A + M Retail Since March 18, 2019

5)   blueFIRE [Merced] A + M Retail + Distribution Coming Summer 2019

6)   Phenos [Stan County] A + M Cultivation + Distribution Coming in 2020

7)   FUEGOazul [Merced] A + M Cultivation + Distribution Coming in 2020

 8)   Firehouse [Turlock] A + M Retail Application in 
progress

Attachments:

1. Firehouse Cooperative, Inc. Articles of Incorporation

2. Secretary of State Statement of Information

3. Bylaws

4. Firehouse Fictitious Name Statement (Pending Approval)

4   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section B: Legal Ownership Structure



ATTACHMENT: FIREHOUSE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION



ATTACHMENT: SECRETARY OF STATE STATEMENT OF INFORMATION



ATTACHMENT : FIREHOUSE COOPERATIVE, INC. BYLAWS

Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



Firehouse Cooperative, Inc Bylaws



C) PROPOSED BUSINESS LOCATION

5   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section C : Proposed Business Location

Proposed building appearance after tenant improvements



Proposed Location
The Premier Group’s unique history of being the highest community benefit taxpayer in every 
city we operate revealed the critical elements that are important for a location to be able to 
achieve significant revenues. Out of all 16 licenses held, our group is most excited about 1601 
W. Main Street in Turlock, CA. It satisfies all necessary elements to be a successful dispensary 
while remaining sensitive to Turlock’s community. An executed lease agreement and legal 
right to occupy are available upon request.

Qualities of a successful building/ location:
    • Stand-alone building with no adjacent tenants, shared walls, or shared ventilation
    • Retail-zoned property designed for heavy traffic
    • Centrally-located
    • Freeway-accessible
    • Significant parking with 51 dedicated spaces
    • ADA compliant building w/ ADA-access ramps
    • Surrounding businesses benefit from increased retail traffic
    • Physical structure that is easy to secure
    • 2 ADA-compliant bathrooms

Firehouse has secured a stand-alone building which is an ideal location for a Turlock 
dispensary. The 4,517 sq ft sole-tenancy building is located in a retail zone (CC) with ample 
distance from all sensitive areas: churches, schools, and residential. Adjacent to the 99 freeway
on Main Street, Firehouse is easily accessible by vehicle or public transit. 

Parking & Traffic
The proposed location has an abundance of parking at fifty-one (51) spaces, four (4) of which 
are allocated for ADA-accessibility.  There are no shared walls or parking stalls with other 
tenants. This location has previously been approved, well-suited, and designed for high traffic. 
These qualities serve to avoid any negative parking or traffic impacts.
 
Neighbors
As demonstrated at the applicant’s existing locations, the convenience stores and fast food 
restaurants stand to appreciate and benefit from the increased consumer traffic. Several 
letters of recommendation have been provided by our neighbors who have enjoyed increased 
security and sales due to the presence of a successful dispensary.

6   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section C : Proposed Business Location



D) BUSINESS & OPERATION PLAN

Real-world Performance

Three years ago, Devin and Bert started a application processes with four cities. Each of these 

cities asked for business and operation plans. The cities of Ceres, Merced, Riverbank, and 

Modesto not only approved each application but ranked us number one overall based on our 

application, operations, and our ability to run successful businesses.

Now that these cannabis businesses are established with reputations, the City of Turlock has 

the ability to evaluate Firehouse based on real-world gross sales evidenced by sales tax 

receipts. This is a far better metric than attempting to judge a business merely by its 

application put together by an hired third-party. These applications may or may not be 

speculation.  Our applications are produced internally by our two owners and provide evidence 

of our performance through tax receipts.  

The Premier Group’s dispensaries lead in every city and expects to do so in the City of Turlock. 

An outline of our business plan is provided, however to appreciate the full scope of our 

operations, a comprehensive binder (approximately 300 pages) with extensive details about 

our business practices and procedures will be provided upon request.

Strategy and Exclusivity

What separates The Premier Group is its customer base.  The three operating dispensaries 

currently serve over 118,000 residents and that count is growing daily.  The ability to remain 

the Central Valley’s top performer in overall sales is made possible by 2-dozen exclusive 

national cannabis-brand partnerships. To put this in context, this would be like owning a 

supermarket and being the exclusive carrier of brands like Pepsi and CocaCola. This 

achievement is due to multi-million dollar bulk-purchase contracts with these national brands.  

The majority of the local market chooses to shop at our stores due to brand selection, variety, 

quality, and pricing.

Ready to Open

Firehouse Cooperative, Inc. has overstaffed in preparation to roll out a new dispensary. 

Similarly, the company has acquired and prepared computers, POS registers, FireKing safes, 

display counters, camera surveillance systems, and other hardware necessary to begin 

operating the next store.  As such, the company is prepared to open Firehouse within weeks of 

local approval.

7   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section D : Business and Operation Plan



ATTACHMENT: PATIENT CARE FIRST 2018 ANNUAL REVENUE



Business & Operation Plan Outline

Due to the 20-page limitation, only an outline of our business plan is provided. A full, detail 

business plan is available upon request.

1. Management & Employment Structure

a. Store Manager, Assistant Manager, Retail Floor Manager , Inventory Manager

b. Eight (8) budtenders and four (4) receptionists 

c. Security personnel is on site 24 hours a day/ 7 days a week

2. Recordkeeping

a. Patient/ Customer Verification

b. Acceptable documentation

c. Vendor and Purchase Tracking

d. Transaction Records

e. Confidentiality

f. Denials of Sale

3. Disposal of Defective Products

4. Operating Plan

a. Day-to-Day Operations Plan

b. Services Offered

c. Customer Intake and Validation

d. Sales Floor Operations

1. Access to the Dispensary Retail Sales Floor

2. Retail Staging and Display

3. Daily Sales Limits

4. Dispensary Daily Operating Schedule

e. Inventory Control

f. Training Plan

g. Hiring and Employment Practices

5. Compliance

6. Security and Safety Procedures

* A 300+ page binder containing our business plan is available upon request.

8   Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section D : Business and Operation Plan



E) PROPOSED PHILANTHROPY PLAN

Charitable Contributions and Local Involvement

The Premier Group continually thrives to improve the perception of the cannabis industry.  To 

facilitate giving back to the community, fish bowls were placed on our display counters 

promoting donations to local charities.  This was later named “Project Fishbowl” and in just five

months, our patients and customers contributed $17,100.  The Premier Group pledged to 

match the amount the community contributed and donated a total of $34,200 to local 

charitable organizations. The program has become a tradition at our  dispensaries and will be 

implemented at future locations.

Community and Charity Contributions & Donations:   

2018 The United Way $5,120

2018 Focus on Prevention $5,120

2018 Modesto Gospel Mission $6,280

2018 Society for Disabilities $6,280

2018 Community Hospice $6,280

2018 Stanislaus County Senior Foundation $5,120

2018 Veterans of Foreign Wars $1,428

2018 Boys & Girls Club $1,000

2017 Measure T in the City of Modesto: $29,000+

2018 Measure Y in the City of Merced:  $50,000+

2018 Riverbank’s annual Cheese & Wine event  $5,000

2018 Modesto Spirit of Giving $5,000 + volunteer employees

2019 Riverbank’s annual Cheese & Wine event  $1,500

2019 Riverbank’s Summer Concert Series $750

2019 Riverbank Historical Society $1,500

2019 Great Valley Museum $548

2019 Connecting Waters Charter School Equipment donation ($50k value)

2018, 2019 Love Modesto’s city improvement program Volunteered 6 employees’ time

2019 (July) Modesto Hetch Hetchy Trail Cleanup Volunteered 13 employees’ time

TOTAL: $180,926+

9 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section E : Proposed Philanthropy Plan



$5,120
$6,280 $6,280

$6,280 $5,120
  

$5,120

Cheese & Wine
Exposition

$6,500
$548

Veterans of Foreign Wars
Post #3199

$1,428

$29,000+

$1,000

$50,000+

10 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section E : Proposed Philanthropy Plan



Community Contributions

The Premier Group contributes to our communities in the following ways:

 Create significantly higher tax revenues

 Donate more charitable contributions to local organizations

 Help law enforcement by providing low-cost cannabis to suppress the 

        black market

 Elevate the industry standard

 No negative consequences

 Track record of ZERO service calls to any existing store (PCF, Flavors, Phenos)

 Largest cannabis employer

 Added security and surveillance

 Aesthetic improvements

Measure T and Measure Y Contributions

The Premier Group was the top contributor to the City of Modesto’s Measure T and the City of 

Merced’s Measure Y.  The group donated over $30,000 to Measure T and $50,000 to Measure 

Y, registered over 2,000 patients, paid for posters and 60,000 flyers, created an online sign-up 

site to facilitate communication with the cannabis community, and visited 25 retail cannabis 

stores in the county multiple times per week for 6 weeks.  Both Measures passed with over 

80% majority, signifying a tangible impact the group has made to advance cannabis business in

Modesto and Merced.

Highest Tax Contributors

Our organization has shown the ability to consistently and sustainably generate 4-6 times as 

much annual revenue as the average dispensary:

 Attachments: 1) Letters of Recommendation from City of Ceres Mayor Vierra and City 

Manager Mr. Toby Wells

2) Letters of Recommendation from Riverbank Mayor O’Brien and City 

Manager Sean Scully

11 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section E : Proposed Philanthropy Plan



ATTACHMENT: LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION, CITY OF CERES



ATTACHMENT: LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION, CITY OF CERES



ATTACHMENT: LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION, CITY OF RIVERBANK



ATTACHMENT: LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION, CITY OF RIVERBANK



A1

A2

A3

A4

A5

A6A7A8A9

A10

A11

A12

A13

A14 A15 A16 A17

A18

A19

A20

A21

A22

A23

A24
A25

A26 A27

A28

A29

A30A31

B1

B2

B3

B4 B5

B6

B7

B8

B9

B10B11B12B13

B14

B15

K1

K2

K3

CAMERA
DISPLAY
MONITORS

Camera 
Video 

Storage

Pr
od

uc
t D

el
iv

er
y 

Lo
ad

in
g/

Un
lo

ad
in

g

Product 
Refrigerators

Product Display Cases

Product 
Display Wall

Product 
Display Wall

   FireKing Safes
(Product Storage)

Cannabis 
Destroy 

Bin

F) PRELIMINARY FLOOR PLAN Revised: 2019-07-01

Panic 1

Panic 2

Panic 3

Panic 5

P
a
n
ic

 6

Panic 7

Panic 4

2x6 EXTERIOR WALL

WALL  LEGEND

NEW WALL 2x4 @ 16"o.c.

2x4 INTERIOR WALL

Scale:1/4"-1'-0"

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN 
1

SALES FLOOR

MANAGER’S
OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STORAGE
VAULT

VENDINGVENDING

EMERGENCY
EXIT

EXIT

12 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section F : Preliminary Floor Plan

Main Street

interior camera

exterior camera

Knight Protection PTZ camera

CAMERA LEGEND

SECURITY

RECEPTION
LOBBY



G) PRELIMINARY SECURITY PROPOSAL

Security Plan

The Premier Group is actively improving security measures at all locations to stay ahead of all 

local and state requirements and to continue to set the standard in dispensary security.  A 

comprehensive version of this security proposal is available upon request.

This plan was developed in cooperation with two licensed industry professionals: Knight 

Protection, Inc. and Stone Protection Services.  Each company has provided a security plan 

specific to their provided services, monitored real-time video surveillance and armed security 

guards. Phenos, our latest store to open in Modesto has 104 security cameras.  A Modesto 

cannabis consultant stated it was set up better than a casino.

Security Camera Types, Capabilities and Locations

Firehouse’s video surveillance system utilizes three (3) distinct high-end commercial systems. 

Two (2) camera systems are utilized by our management team and security personnel. Security

footage is kept on premises for ninety (90) days to meet CA state requirements. These systems

use 4mp cameras and are viewable locally on a 4k HD output system or by authorized remote 

access personnel or authorities on any mobile device or personal computer.  The purpose of 

these two systems is to monitor every area of the premises both inside and out.  A Video 

Surveillance Audit is performed weekly to ensure all cameras are operating properly and 

footage properly recorded for the specified duration of time.

A third system is installed, maintained, and managed by a third-party surveillance company 

Knight Protection.  24/7 live monitoring is provided with instant alerts to our personnel in case 

of any suspicious activities.  Knight Protection has the ability to remotely sound an exterior 

alarm and additionally speak to and hear someone at the facility.  Ninety (90) days of footage 

is stored off-site at the company’s own datacenters.

All surveillance equipment, records and recordings are stored in a secure area only accessible 

by select management staff.

Alarm System and Door Locks

• Commercial Alarm System 
• Retail floor door remains locked- requires ID verification for entry
• Auto Locking Passcode Door Locks
• Panic Buttons

13  Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section G : Preliminary Security Proposal



Perimeter and Ingress/ Egress Security

Every access point is secured with multiple layers of protection.  All windows and doors are 

covered on the inside with our proprietary steel security mesh and externally with a security 

film which protects the glass from being broken or scratched.  Armed security guards are 

stationed by each exterior access door during business hours and authorize each visitor by 

prompting for identification prior to being allowed building entry.  High-intensity lighting is 

installed around the entire premises for adequate visuals by security personnel and on 

recorded video footage. Specially designated distributor parking and entrances are used to 

completely separate distributors from retail customers.

Internal Security for Area-Specific Access

All on-premises employees are required to wear their employee identification badge displaying

a photo of their face, full name, name of the dispensary, employee id, and state cannabis 

license number.  Within the facility, each and every limited-access area is protected with a 

passcode door-lock.  Limited access areas include all areas where cannabis or cash are located. 

Only personnel with limited-access permissions are given the passcodes.  Entry into any 

limited-access areas by non-managers must be accompanied by a Manager. 

Product Security

Forty-five (45) FireKing safes totaling 19,575lbs are used for cannabis storage on the retail 
floor.  All safes remain closed during business hours & locked outside business hours for secure 
overnight storage.

Employee Theft Deterrence and Prevention

All Firehouse staff shall be well-informed of our zero-tolerance policy regarding theft.  Any 

evidence of theft will result in immediate termination.  All employees bags and pockets are 

checked each and every time entering or exiting the building or the retail floor by a third-party 

security guard provided by Stone Protection Services.

Building Improvements

Additional layers of security shall be added specifically to the structure itself at 1601 West Main
Street. 

• Custom Steel Mesh Window and Door Panels
• Security Film on windows exterior
• Built-in Vault Rooms
• Secure & Separate Entrance for Distributor Deliveries
• Security Rooms/ Security Glass
• High-Intensity LED Perimeter + Parking Lot Lighting

14 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Section G : Preliminary Security Proposal



FIREHOUSE TEAM

Bert Sarkis - CEO

Fifteen (15) years of experience in retail sales management and employee development.  Built and managed a 
multi-location auto sales business for ten (10) years.

Bert is masterful at training new employees and motivating his teams to grow into management positions. He 
is also responsible for our distributor relationships and exclusive partnerships with the top twenty-four (24) 
name brands in the cannabis industry, one of the most crucial reasons for our success. Bert’s cannabis 
expertise has been demonstrated by producing the three largest dispensaries in the county.

Devin Stetler - CTO

Engineering Degree from Cal Poly 2004 and eighteen (18) years of experience in hardware and software 
technology over multiple industries. Devin leverages and manages a wide range of technologies to improve 
compliance, safety, and efficiency for all retail locations and corporate operations.   

Devin has created software for the cannabis industry in the following categories:

o Security: Provides verification of cannabis transit personnel to local police.  

o Distribution: A distribution marketplace to connect licensed distributors to retail dispensaries.

o Analytics: Forecasts product buying trends in the cannabis market.

o Communications: Tools to stay in touch with our organization’s customer base.

o Registration: Paperless and efficient sign-up and sign-in process for all customers

Natasha Parra - District Manager
Fifteen (15) years of retail sales management, five (5) years experience in merchandising at a $900M retail 
company. 

o Oversees internal operations at all retail locations, specializing in merchandising.

o General Manager of PCF Distribution, sales cycle analytics, delivery logistics.

o Oversee State and local compliance for all operations 

Business, Strategic, and Financial Consultants

Business Consultants: Shay Roberts and Ray Krieger

CPA: Richard Spaulding

Legal Representation

Michael Warda:  2350 W Monte Vista Ave, Turlock, CA 95382

Art Hodges:  701 Palomar Airport Rd #300, Carlsbad, CA 92011

Availability: All members of the Firehouse team are full-time employees and are readily available.

References: Please see attached letters of recommendation from City Mayors and City Managers of Ceres and 
Riverbank in section E) Proposed Philanthropy Plan.

15 Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Team



ECONOMICS

Financial Overview

Hiring Forecast

Upon approval of the proposed dispensary at 1601 West Main Street, Firehouse anticipates hiring 
eighteen (18) new employees from the local community, preferencing applicants residing nearest to 
the facility. Firehouse expects to create twenty-two (22) new full-time jobs over the next three years.

2019 Revenue and Projections

 Attachment: Sales & Use Tax Payment Receipts

16  Firehouse Retail Cannabis Dispensary | Economics



ATTACHMENT:  SALES & USE TAX RECEIPTS

We welcome and encourage the opportunity to provide proof. Tax receipts are the only real 
indicators of how a business will perform. 3 years of tax payments are available upon request.























































































































FUEGOazul
TABLE OF CONTENTS

BUSINESS PLAN 1

INTRODUCTION 1

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 2

A. PRINCIPAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION 3

B. LEGAL OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 4

ATTACHMENT: ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

ATTACHMENT: SECRETARY OF STATE STATEMENT OF INFORMATION

C. PROPOSED BUSINESS LOCATION 5

D. BUSINESS & OPERATION PLAN 7

E. PROPOSED PHILANTHROPY PLAN 9

          ATTACHMENT: LETTERS OF RECOMMENDATION

F. PRELIMINARY FLOOR PLAN 12

G. PRELIMINARY SECURITY PLAN 13

PERSONNEL/PROJECT TEAM 15

ECONOMICS 17











        DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY                                                              
        INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                                                                
        CINCINNATI  OH   45999-0023                                                             

                                                             Date of this notice:  11-20-2018   

                                                             Employer Identification Number:    
                                                                                      

                                                             Form:  SS-4                        

                                                             Number of this notice:  CP 575 A   
             FUEGO AZUL INC                                                                     
             % DEVIN STETLER                                                                    
             2213 PATTERSON RD                               For assistance you may call us at: 
             RIVERBANK, CA  95367                            1-800-829-4933                     
                                                                                                
                                                                                                
                                                             IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE           
                                                             STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE.    

                     WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER                          

           Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN).  We assigned you 
      EIN 83-2593476.  This EIN will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, and     
      documents, even if you have no employees.  Please keep this notice in your permanent      
      records.                                                                                  

           When filing tax documents, payments, and related correspondence, it is very important
      that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown above.  Any variation
      may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect information in your account, or even 
      cause you to be assigned more than one EIN.  If the information is not correct as shown   
      above, please make the correction using the attached tear off stub and return it to us.   

           Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file     
      the following form(s) by the date(s) shown.                                               

                           Form 1120                       04/15/2019                           

           If you have questions about the form(s) or the due date(s) shown, you can call us at 
      the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice.  If you   
      need help in determining your annual accounting period (tax year), see Publication 538,   
      Accounting Periods and Methods.                                                           

           We assigned you a tax classification based on information obtained from you or your  
      representative.  It is not a legal determination of your tax classification, and is not   
      binding on the IRS.  If you want a legal determination of your tax classification, you may
      request a private letter ruling from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure    
      2004-1, 2004-1 I.R.B. 1 (or superseding Revenue Procedure for the year at issue).  Note:  
      Certain tax classification elections can be requested by filing Form 8832, Entity         
      Classification Election.  See Form 8832 and its instructions for additional information.  

           IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR S CORPORATION ELECTION:                                    

           If you intend to elect to file your return as a small business corporation, an       
      election to file a Form 1120-S must be made within certain timeframes and the             
      corporation must meet certain tests.  All of this information is included in the          
      instructions for Form 2553, Election by a Small Business Corporation.                     







Proposed Location

The Premier Group’s unique history of being the highest community benefit taxpayer in every 

city we operate revealed the critical elements that are important for a location to be able to 

achieve significant revenues. Out of all 16 licenses held, our group is most excited about 495 & 

497 S. Golden State Blvd. in Turlock, CA. It satisfies all necessary elements to be a successful 

cultivation, distribution and manufacturing facility while remaining sensitive to Turlock’s 

community. An executed lease agreement and legal right to occupy are available upon 

request.

Qualities of a successful building/ location:

    • Stand-alone building with no adjacent tenants, shared walls, or shared ventilation

    • Industrial-zoned property designed for heavy traffic

    • Centrally-located

    • Freeway-accessible

    • Significant parking

    • ADA compliant building w/ ADA-access ramps

    • Physical structure that is easy to secure

    • ADA-compliant bathrooms

FUEGOazul has secured a stand-alone building which is an ideal location for a Turlock 

cultivation facility. The 56,168 sq ft sole-tenancy building is located in a industrial zone (CC) 

with ample distance from all sensitive areas: churches, schools, and residential. 

6  FUEGOazul Cannabis Cultivation, Distribution, and Manufacturing |

       Section C : Proposed Business Location





Business & Operation Plan

Ideally, we are asking for indoor cultivation, a four-stacked 10,000 sq ft licenses (Type 2A- 

Small Indoor Cultivation), Volatile Manufacturing (Type 7), Distribution (Type 11).  Our business

plan is detailed in our Firehouse Application. 

This is a vertically integrated “farm-to-table” plan that would allow our team to create a 

consistent, high-quality product to be grown in the City of Turlock and sold in the Central 

Valley.  This plan eliminates the cost of a dozen refrigerated vans and sales people driving from

the top of California to San Diego in an effort to peddle a few pounds per retail location.  The 

advantages of reducing the costs of such a structure would allow this facility to remain 

competitive and prosperous in an unstable, developing industry. 

Business & Operation Plan Outline

Due to the 20-page limitation, only an outline of our business plan is provided. A full, detail 

business plan is available upon request.

1. Management & Employment Structure

a. Cultivation Manager, Assistant Manager, Floor Manager, Inventory Manager

b. Security personnel is on site 24 hours a day/ 7 days a week

2. Recordkeeping

a. Track-and-Trace

b. Inventory, Security, and Recordkeeping

c. Record, Reports, and Manifest Storage

d. Vendor and Purchase Tracking

e. Transaction Records

f. Confidentiality

g. Denials of Sale

3. Product Transfer & Transport

4. Disposal of Unused Products

5. Air Treatment System

6. Operating Plan

a. Day-to-Day Operations Plan

b. Inventory Control

c. Training Plan

d. Hiring and Employment Practices

7. Compliance

8. Security and Safety Procedures

8   FUEGOazul Cannabis Cultivation, Distribution, and Manufacturing | Section D : Business and Operation Plan





$5,120
$6,280 $6,280

$6,280 $5,120
  

$5,120

Cheese & Wine
Exposition

$6,500
$548

Veterans of Foreign Wars
Post #3199

$1,428

$29,000+

$1,000

$50,000+

10   FUEGOazul Cannabis Cultivation, Distribution, and Manufacturing | Section E: Proposed Philanthropy Plan



Community Contributions

The Premier Group contributes to our communities in the following ways:

 Create significantly higher tax revenues

 Donate more charitable contributions to local organizations

 Help law enforcement by providing low-cost cannabis to suppress the 

        black market

 Elevate the industry standard

 No negative consequences

 Track record of ZERO service calls to any existing store (PCF, Flavors, Phenos)

 Largest cannabis employer

 Added security and surveillance

 Aesthetic improvements

Measure T and Measure Y Contributions

The Premier Group was the top contributor to the City of Modesto’s Measure T and the City of 

Merced’s Measure Y.  The group donated over $30,000 to Measure T and $50,000 to Measure 

Y, registered over 2,000 patients, paid for posters and 60,000 flyers, created an online sign-up 

site to facilitate communication with the cannabis community, and visited 25 retail cannabis 

stores in the county multiple times per week for 6 weeks.  Both Measures passed with over 

80% majority, signifying a tangible impact the group has made to advance cannabis business in

Modesto and Merced.

Highest Tax Contributors

Our organization has shown the ability to consistently and sustainably generate 4-6 times as 

much annual revenue as the average dispensary:

Riverbank “Flavors” $500,000.00
Ceres “Patient Care First” $1,200,000.00
Modesto “Phenos” $1,200,000.00 +
Turlock “Firehouse”

 Attachments: 1) Letters of Recommendation from City of Ceres Mayor Vierra and City 

Manager Mr. Toby Wells

2) Letters of Recommendation from Riverbank Mayor O’Brien and City 

Manager Sean Scully

11   FUEGOazul Cannabis Cultivation, Distribution, and Manufacturing | Section E: Proposed Philanthropy Plan















Perimeter and Ingress/ Egress Security

Every access point is secured with multiple layers of protection.  All windows and doors are 

covered on the inside with our proprietary steel security mesh and externally with a security 

film which protects the glass from being broken or scratched.  Armed security guards are 

stationed by each exterior access door during business hours and authorize each visitor by 

prompting for identification prior to being allowed building entry.  High-intensity lighting is 

installed around the entire premises for adequate visuals by security personnel and on 

recorded video footage. Specially designated distributor parking and entrances are used to 

completely separate distributors from retail customers.

Internal Security for Area-Specific Access

All on-premises employees are required to wear their employee identification badge displaying

a photo of their face, full name, name of the dispensary, employee id, and state cannabis 

license number.  Within the facility, each and every limited-access area is protected with a 

passcode door-lock.  Limited access areas include all areas where cannabis or cash are located. 

Only personnel with limited-access permissions are given the passcodes.  Entry into any 

limited-access areas by non-managers must be accompanied by a Manager. 

Product Security

Forty-five (45) FireKing safes totaling 19,575lbs are used for cannabis storage on the retail 
floor.  All safes remain closed during business hours & locked outside business hours for secure 
overnight storage.

Employee Theft Deterrence and Prevention

All Firehouse staff shall be well-informed of our zero-tolerance policy regarding theft.  Any 

evidence of theft will result in immediate termination.  All employees bags and pockets are 

checked each and every time entering or exiting the building or the retail floor by a third-party 

security guard provided by Stone Protection Services.

Building Improvements

Additional layers of security shall be added specifically to the structure itself at 1601 West Main
Street. 

• Custom Steel Mesh Window and Door Panels
• Security Film on windows exterior
• Built-in Vault Rooms
• Secure & Separate Entrance for Distributor Deliveries
• Security Rooms/ Security Glass
• High-Intensity LED Perimeter + Parking Lot Lighting

14   FUEGOazul Cannabis Cultivation, Distribution, and Manufacturing

            Section G : Preliminary Security Proposal





Legal Representation

Michael Warda:  2350 W Monte Vista Ave, Turlock, CA 95382

Art Hodges:  701 Palomar Airport Rd #300, Carlsbad, CA 92011

Availability: All members of the Firehouse team are full-time employees and are readily available.

References: Please see attached letters of recommendation from City Mayors and City Managers of Ceres and 
Riverbank in section E) Proposed Philanthropy Plan.

16    FUEGOazul Cannabis Cultivation, Distribution, and Manufacturing | Team



























































































































Executive Summary 
Company Summary 
Cal State Ventures2, INC intends to begin operations in the year 2020 after received approval from both the City of 

Turlock and the State of California. The distribution is dedicated to building relations with cultivators and 

manufactures across the state in order to maintain a consistent stock of cannabis products for both the Medical 

and Recreational market. The stock will include an extensive line of products which include flowers, concentrates, 

dosables, edibles, and accessories.  

 

Main Goals 

✓ Own and operate cannabis Storefront Distribution in Turlock, California. 

✓ To distribute both Medicinal and Recreational cannabis and cannabis products. 

✓ To be fully compliant with all state and local municipalities. 

✓ To supply high-grade cannabis and cannabis products to dispensaries.  

 Mission 

✓ To set a standard for compliant operations while becoming a top provider of high-quality products.   

         Main Objectives 

✓ Securing a Distribution license that allows for both Medical and Recreational Use.   

✓ Net annual income to support operational expenses.  

✓ Continue to build on reputation, and sales profitability and loyalty 

        Products & Services 

✓ Flower  

✓ Concentrates 

✓ Infused edibles and topicals 

✓ Accessories  

Principle Background Information  
Company Owners:  

• Careli Galvan-Sulamo  
Chief Executive Officer – Chief Financial Officer - 
Director 

• Anna Karapetyan  
Secretary – Director   

 
Company Managers:  

• Andreas Hendriksson  
Operations Manager 

• Ryan DeArkland  
Operations Manager 

 

Legal Ownership Structure 

Cal State Ventures2, INC is to be formed as an Incorporation. Included in this RFQ is a copy of the, Statement of 

Information. (*Due to the RFQ page limit our Article of Incorporation and Bylaws are immediately available upon 

request) 

Proposed Business Location 

Proposed Project Location:  
Address:  501 West F Street, Turlock, CA 95380 

 APN:   050-031-045-000 
  
Property Owner Information:  
Evidence of the legal right to occupy is included in this RFQ, as well as a notarized Letter of Authorization from the 

property owner, stating their acknowledgement of cannabis operations within its parameters.   

Name:  CATIZONE 2012 TRUST 
 Address: PO BOX 3896 Modesto, CA 95353 
 Contact: Frank Catizone  (209) 471 – 9931  frank_catizone@comcast.net  
 
 



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

2 

 
 
 
Statement of Information  

 

  





By Laws 

  



 

BYLAWS OF Cal State Ventures2, Inc 

(the "Corporation")		

SHAREHOLDERS (the "Shareholders")

Annual Meeting

1. A meeting of the Shareholders will be held annually for the purpose of electing directors (the

"Directors") of the Corporation and for the purpose of doing other business as may come before

the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting is a legal holiday in the State of California,

the annual meeting will be held on the next succeeding business day or on a date determined by

the board of directors for the Corporation (the "Board") that is no later than two weeks after the

date specified in the meeting notice. 

2. The Corporation must hold its annual meeting within: a) 60 days after the date designated for the

annual meeting or if no date was designated; b) 15 months after its last regular meeting. If the

annual meeting is not held within that time period then any shareholder entitled to participate in

the meeting may apply to the superior court of the proper county to fix the time and place of the

meeting. 

Special Meetings

3. Unless otherwise prescribed by statute, special meetings of the Shareholders may only be called

for any purpose or purposes in the following ways: 

a. By a majority of the Board; or 

b. By the president of the Corporation (the "President"); or 

c. By the holders of shares entitled to cast in total not less than 10 percent of the votes on any

issue proposed for the meeting where written request(s) describing the purpose or purposes

for the special meeting are signed, dated and delivered to a member of the Board or other

Officer of the Corporation. 

4. The Board will determine the time, place and date of any special meeting provided that, in the

case of a special meeting called by the requisite percentage of Shareholders in accordance with

these Bylaws, the Board will issue notice of the special meeting within 20 days of receipt of the

written demand(s) by the relevant Officer of the Corporation. The Board will schedule the

meeting for a date not less than 35 nor more than 60 days after the receipt of the request. 

Page 1 of 16



 

Place of Meeting

5. The annual meetings or special meetings of the Shareholders may be held at any place in or out of

the State of California at a place to be determined at the discretion of the Board. If no designation

of the location is made for any annual or special meeting of the Shareholders, the place of the

meeting will be the Principal Executive Office of the Corporation. 

Notice of Meetings

6. The written notice of any meeting will be given not less than 10 days, but not more than 60 days

before the date of the meeting to each Shareholder entitled to vote at that meeting. The written

notice of the meeting will state the place, date and hour of the meeting, the means of remote

communications, if any, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which

the meeting is called. 

7. If mailed, notice is given when the notice is deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid,

and directed to the Shareholder at the address of the Shareholder as it appears on the records of

the Corporation. An affidavit of the secretary (the "Secretary") of the Corporation that the notice

has been given will, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated in the

notice. 

8. A written waiver, signed by the person entitled to a notice of meeting, or a waiver by electronic

transmission by the person entitled to that notice, whether before or after the time stated in the

notice, will be deemed equivalent to the person receiving the notice. Further, attendance of a

person at a meeting will constitute a waiver of notice of that meeting, except when the person

attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the

transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. 

Consent of Shareholders in Lieu of Meeting

9. Any action to be taken at any annual or special meeting of Shareholders, may be taken without a

meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth

the action to be taken, is signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the

minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take the action at a meeting at

which all shares entitled to vote on the matter were present and voted is delivered to the

Corporation. Every written consent will bear the date of signature of each Shareholder who signs

the consent. However, no written consent will be effective unless the consent is delivered, either

by hand or by certified or registered mail, within 90 days of the earliest dated consent, to the

Corporation for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the corporate records. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 2 of 16



 

Remote Communication Meetings

10. Remote communication means any electronic communication including conference telephone,

video conference, the Internet, or any other method currently available or developed in the future

by which Shareholders not present in the same physical location may simultaneously

communicate with each other. 

11. Where permitted under the statutes and regulations of the State of California, and in the sole and

reasonable discretion of the Board of Directors, a meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation

may be held at a specific location or may be held by any means of remote communication. Where

a meeting will employ remote communication, one or more Shareholders may participate by

means of remote communication or the meeting may be held solely by means of remote

communication at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors. Where any remote

communication is used in a Shareholder meeting, all persons authorized to vote or take other

action at the meeting must be able to hear each other during the meeting and each person will

have a reasonable opportunity to participate. This remote participation in a meeting will

constitute presence in person at the meeting. All votes or other actions taken at the meeting by

means of electronic transmission must be maintained as a matter of record by the Corporation. 

List of Shareholders Entitled to Vote

12. The Officer who has charge of the Record of Shareholders of the Corporation will prepare and

make, 10 to 60 days before every meeting of the Shareholders, a complete list of the Shareholders

entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each

Shareholder and the number of shares of stock registered in the name of each Shareholder. The

list must be available for inspection by any Shareholder. The list must be provided for any

purpose related to the meeting: 

a. On a reasonably accessible electronic network, so long as the information required to

access the list is provided with the notice of the meeting; or 

b. During ordinary business hours, at the Registered Office of the Corporation in this state. 

13. If the Corporation decides to make the list available on an electronic network, the Corporation

will ensure that this information is available only to Shareholders of the Corporation. If the

meeting is to be held at a physical location, then the list will be produced and kept at the time and

place of the meeting during the whole time of the meeting and may be inspected by any

Shareholder who is present. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 3 of 16



 

14. If the meeting is to be held solely by means of remote communication, then the list will also be

open to the examination of any Shareholder during the whole time of the meeting on a reasonably

accessible electronic network, and the information required to access the list will be provided

with the notice of the meeting. 

15. If any Director willfully neglects or refuses to produce the list of Shareholders at any meeting for

the election of Directors, or to open such a list to examination on a reasonably accessible

electronic network during any meeting for the election of Directors held solely by means of

remote communication, those Directors will be ineligible for election to any office at that

meeting. 

16. The Record of Shareholders will be the only evidence as to who are the Shareholders entitled by

this section to examine the list required by this section or to vote in person or by proxy at any

meeting of Shareholders. 

Quorum and Required Vote

17. A minimum of 51 percent of the shares entitled to vote, present in person or represented by

proxy, will constitute a quorum entitled to take action at a meeting of Shareholders. 

18. In all matters other than the election of Directors, any act of the Shareholders must be passed by

an affirmative vote of the majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the

meeting and entitled to vote on the matter. 

19. Directors will be elected by a majority of the votes of the shares present in person or represented

by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the election of Directors. 

20. Where a separate vote by a class or series or classes or series of shares ("Eligible Shares") is

required, 51 percent of the outstanding Eligible Shares present in person or represented by proxy,

will constitute a quorum entitled to take action with respect to that vote on that matter. Any act to

be taken must be passed by an affirmative vote of the majority of the outstanding Eligible Shares

present in person or represented by proxy. 

Shareholders Voting Rights and Proxies

21. Subject to the Articles of Incorporation, each Shareholder will be entitled to one vote for each

share of stock held by that Shareholder. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 4 of 16



 

22. Each Shareholder entitled to vote at a meeting of Shareholders or to express consent or dissent to

corporate action in writing without a meeting may authorize another person or persons to act for

that Shareholder by proxy, but no proxy will be valid after 11 months from the date of its

execution unless the proxy provides for a longer period. 

23. Execution of a proxy may be accomplished by the Shareholder or by the authorized Officer,

Director, employee or agent of the Shareholder, signing the writing or causing that person's

signature to be affixed to the writing by any reasonable means including, but not limited to, by

facsimile signature. 

24. A duly executed proxy will be irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable and if, and only as long

as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient in law to support an irrevocable power. A proxy may

be made irrevocable regardless of whether the interest with which it is coupled is an interest in

the shares or an interest in the Corporation generally. 

Voting Rights of Fiduciaries, Pledgers and Joint Owners of Shares

25. Persons holding shares in a fiduciary capacity will be entitled to vote the shares so held. Persons

whose shares are pledged will be entitled to vote, unless, in the transfer by the pledger on the

books of the Corporation, that person has expressly empowered the pledgee to vote the shares, in

which case only the pledgee, or that pledgee's proxy, may represent and vote the shares. 

Voting Trusts and Other Voting Agreements

26. Two or more Shareholders may, by agreement in writing, create a voting trust by depositing their

shares with a voting trustee, who will have the authority to vote the shares in accordance with the

terms and conditions of the voting trust agreement. To be valid, the voting trustee must deliver

copies of the list of Shareholders and the voting trust agreement to the Secretary of the

Corporation. Upon receiving the voting trust agreement, the Corporation will issue new share

certificates in the name of the trustee and cancel the old share certificates. The new share

certificates issued will state that they are issued pursuant to a voting trust agreement. 

27. Any amendment to a voting trust agreement will be made by a written agreement, a copy of

which will be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation. 

28. The right of inspection of any voting trust agreement or related amendment by a Shareholder of

record or a holder of a voting trust certificate, in person or by agent, will be the same right of

inspection that applies to the securities register of the Corporation. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 5 of 16



 

29. An agreement between two or more Shareholders, if in writing and signed by the parties to the

agreement, may provide that in exercising any voting rights, the shares held by them will be

voted as provided by the agreement, or as the parties may agree, or as determined in accordance

with a procedure agreed upon by them. 

30. The above provisions concerning voting trusts and voting agreements will not be deemed to

invalidate any voting or other agreement among Shareholders or any irrevocable proxy which is

not otherwise illegal. 

Cumulative Voting

31. Shareholders may use cumulative voting elections when electing Directors. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

General Powers

32. The business and affairs of the Corporation will be managed by or under the direction of the

Board. 

Number, Tenure and Quorum

33. The Board will consist of two members, each of whom will be a natural person. Directors need

not be Shareholders. Each Director will hold office until that Director's successor is elected and

qualified or until that Director's earlier resignation or removal. Any Director may resign at any

time upon notice given in writing or by electronic transmission to the Corporation. In order to

transact business at a meeting of the Directors, a quorum of 2 percent of the total number of

Directors eligible to vote will be required. The vote of the majority of the Directors present at a

meeting at which a quorum is present will be the act of the Board. 

Regular Meetings

34. By resolution, the Board may provide the time and place, either within or without the State of

California, for the holding of regular meetings without any notice other than that resolution. 

Special Meetings

35. Special meetings of the Board may be called by or at the request of the President or by a majority

of the Directors. The person or persons calling that special meeting of the Board may fix any

date, time or place, either within or without the State of California, to be the date, time and place

for holding that special meeting. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 6 of 16



 

Notice

36. Written notice of the date, time, and place of a special meeting of the Board will be given at least

2 days prior to the date set for that meeting. The written notice can be given personally, by mail,

by private carrier, by telegraph, by telephone facsimile, or by any other manner as permitted by

the California General Corporation Law. The notice will be given by the Secretary or one of the

persons authorized to call Directors' meetings. 

37. If written notice is mailed, correctly addressed to a Director's address as provided in the

Corporation's current records, the notice will be deemed to have been given to that Director at the

time of mailing. If written notice is sent by private carrier or if the written notice is sent by United

States mail, postage prepaid and by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, the

notice will be deemed to have been given to a Director on the date shown on the return receipt.

Otherwise notice is effective when received by a Director. 

38. Notice of any Directors' meeting may be waived by a Director before or after the date and time of

the meeting. The waiver must be in writing, must be signed by a Director, and must be delivered

to the Corporation for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the corporate records. The

attendance of a Director at a meeting of the Board will constitute a waiver of notice of that

meeting except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the

transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully convened. 

Action by Directors Without a Meeting

39. Any action to be taken at any meeting of the Board or of any committee of the Board may be

taken without a meeting if all members of the Board or committee, as the case may be, consent to

it in writing, or by electronic transmission and the writing or writings or electronic transmission

or transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board, or committee. This filing

will be in paper form if the minutes are maintained in paper form and will be in electronic form if

the minutes are maintained in electronic form. 

Remote Communication Meetings

40. Remote communication means any electronic communication including conference telephone,

video conference, the Internet, or any other method currently available or developed in the future

by which Directors not present in the same physical location may simultaneously communicate

with each other. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 7 of 16



 

41. A meeting of the Board may be held by any means of remote communication by which all

persons authorized to vote or take other action at the meeting can hear each other during the

meeting and each person has a reasonable opportunity to participate. This remote participation in

a meeting will constitute presence in person at the meeting. 

Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships

42. When vacancies or newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized

number of Directors occur, a majority of the Directors then in office, although less than a

quorum, or a sole remaining Director will have the power to appoint new Directors to fill this

vacancy or vacancies. Each new Director so chosen will hold office until the next annual meeting

of the Shareholders. 

43. If at any time, by reason of death or resignation or other cause, the Corporation should have no

Directors in office, then any Officer or any Shareholder or an executor, administrator, trustee or

guardian of a Shareholder, or other fiduciary entrusted with like responsibility for the person or

estate of a Shareholder, may call a special meeting of Shareholders for an election to fill the

vacancy. 

44. When one or more Directors resign from the Board and the resignation is to become effective at a

future date, a majority of the Directors then in office, including those who have so resigned, will

have the power to appoint new Directors to fill this vacancy or vacancies. The appointments of

these new Directors will take effect when the resignation or resignations are to become effective,

and each new Director so chosen will hold office until the next annual meeting of the

Shareholders. 

Removal

45. Any Director or the entire Board may be removed, with or without cause, by the holders of a

majority of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of Directors at a special meeting of the

Shareholders called for that purpose. No director may be removed when the votes cast against

removal would be sufficient to elect the director if voted cumulatively at an election where the

same total number of votes were cast. 

Organization

46. Meetings of the Board will be presided over by the President, or in the President's absence by a

Director chosen at the meeting. The Secretary will act as secretary of the meeting, but in the

absence of the Secretary, the person presiding at the meeting may appoint any person to act as

Corporate Bylaws Page 8 of 16



 

secretary of the meeting. 

Chairman of the Board

47. The Chairman of the Board, if present, will preside at all meetings of the Board, and exercise and

perform any other authorities and duties as may be from time to time delegated by the Board. 

Compensation

48. The Board will, by resolution, fix the fees and other compensation for the Directors for their

services as Directors, including their services as members of committees of the Board. All

changes to Director compensation are subject to ratification by the Shareholders. 

Presumption of Assent

49. A Director of the Corporation who is present at a meeting of the Board will be presumed to have

assented to an action taken on any corporate matter at the meeting unless: 

a. The Director objects at the beginning of the meeting, or promptly upon the Director's

arrival, to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting; 

b. The Director's dissent or abstention from the action taken is entered in the minutes of the

meeting; or 

c. The Director delivers written notice of the Director's dissent or abstention to the presiding

officer of the meeting before the adjournment of the meeting or to the Corporation within a

reasonable time after adjournment of the meeting. 

50. Any right to dissent or abstain from the action will not apply to a Director who voted in favor of

that action. 

 

COMMITTEES

Appointment

51. The Board may designate one or more committees, each committee to consist of one or more of

the Directors of the Corporation. The Board may designate one or more Directors as alternate

members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting

of the committee. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 9 of 16



 

52. In the absence or disqualification of a member of a committee, the member or members present at

any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not that member or members constitute

a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board to act at the meeting in the

place of any absent or disqualified member. 

53. The committee or committees, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board will have and

may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board in the management of the business and

affairs of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all

papers which may require it. No such committee will have the power or authority in reference to

the following matters: 

a. Approving or adopting, or recommending to the Shareholders, any action or matter (other

than the election or removal of Directors) expressly required by the California General

Corporation Law to be submitted to Shareholders for approval; or 

b. Adopting, amending or repealing any Bylaw of the Corporation. 

Tenure

54. Each member of a committee will serve at the pleasure of the Board. 

Meetings and Notice

55. The method by which Directors' meetings may be called and the notice requirements for these

meetings as set out in these Bylaws will apply to any committee designated by the Board as

appropriate. 

Quorum

56. The requirements for a quorum for the Board as set out in these Bylaws will apply to any

committee designated by the Board as appropriate. 

Action Without a Meeting

57. The requirements and procedures for actions without a meeting for the Board as set out in these

Bylaws will apply to any committee designated by the Board as appropriate. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 10 of 16



 

Resignation and Removal

58. Any member of a committee may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by a resolution

adopted by a majority of the full Board. Any member of a committee may resign from the

committee at any time by giving written notice to the Chairman of the Board of the Corporation,

and unless otherwise specified in the notice, the acceptance of this resignation will not be

necessary to make it effective. 

Vacancies

59. Any vacancy in a committee may be filled by a resolution adopted by a majority of the full

Board. 

Committee Rules of Procedure

60. A committee will elect a presiding officer from its members and may fix its own rules of

procedure provided they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws. A committee will keep regular

minutes of its proceedings, and report those minutes to the Board at the first subsequent meeting

of the Board. 

 

OFFICERS

Appointment of Officers

61. The Officers of the Corporation (individually the "Officer" and collectively the "Officers") will

consist of the President, a treasurer (the "Treasurer") and the Secretary. 

62. The Officers will be appointed by the Board at the first meeting of the Directors or as soon after

the first meeting of the Directors as possible, if Officers have not already been appointed. Any

appointee may hold one or more offices. 

Term of Office

63. Each Officer will hold office until a successor is duly appointed and qualified or until the

Officer's death or until the Officer resigns or is removed as provided in these Bylaws. 

Removal

64. Any Officer or agent appointed by the Board or by the Incorporators may be removed by the

Board at any time with or without cause, provided, however, any contractual rights of that person,

if any, will not be prejudiced by the removal. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 11 of 16



 

Vacancies

65. The Board may fill a vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal,

disqualification, or otherwise. 

President

66. Subject to the control and supervisory powers of the Board and its delegate, the powers and duties

of the President will be: 

a. To have the general management and supervision, direction and control of the business

and affairs of the Corporation; 

b. To preside at all meetings of the Shareholders when the Chairman of the Board is absent; 

c. To call meetings of the Shareholders to be held at such times and at such places as the

President will deem proper within the limitations prescribed by law or by these Bylaws; 

d. To ensure that all orders and resolutions of the Board are effectively carried out; 

e. To maintain records of and certify, whenever necessary, all proceedings of the Board and

the Shareholders; 

f. To put the signature of the Corporation to all deeds, conveyances, mortgages, guarantees,

leases, obligations, bonds, certificates and other papers and instruments in writing which

have been authorized by the Board or which, in the opinion of the President, should be

executed on behalf of the Corporation; to sign certificates for the Corporation's shares;

and, subject to the instructions of the Board, to have general charge of the property of the

Corporation and to supervise and manage all Officers, agents and employees of the

Corporation; and 

g. To perform all other duties and carry out other responsibilities as determined by the Board. 

Treasurer

67. Subject to the control and supervisory powers of the Board and its delegate, the powers and duties

of the Treasurer will be: 

a. To keep accurate financial records for the Corporation; 

Corporate Bylaws Page 12 of 16



 

b. To deposit all money, drafts and checks in the name of and to the credit of the Corporation

in the banks and depositories designated by the Board; 

c. To endorse for deposit all notes, checks and drafts received by the Corporation as

instructed by the Board, making proper vouchers for them; 

d. To disburse corporate funds and issue checks and drafts in the name of the Corporation, as

instructed by the Board; 

e. To submit to the President and the Board, as requested, an account of all transactions by

the Treasurer and the financial condition of the Corporation; 

f. To prepare and submit to the Board annual reports detailing the financial status of the

Corporation; and 

g. To perform all other duties and carry out other responsibilities as prescribed by the Board

or the President. 

Secretary

68. The Secretary will perform the following duties: 

a. Prepare the minutes of the meetings of the Shareholders and meetings of the Board and

keep those minutes in one or more books provided for that purpose; 

b. Authenticate the records of the Corporation as will from time to time be required; 

c. Ensure that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or

as required by law; 

d. Act as custodian of the corporate records and of the corporate seal, if any, and ensure that

the seal of the Corporation, if any, is affixed to all documents the execution of which on

behalf of the Corporation under its seal is duly authorized; 

e. Keep a register of the post office address of each Shareholder; 

Corporate Bylaws Page 13 of 16



 

f. Sign, along with the President, certificates for shares of the Corporation, the issuance of

which will have been authorized by resolution of the Board; 

g. Have general charge of the Record of Shareholders of the Corporation; and 

h. Perform all duties incidental to the office of Secretary and any other duties as from time to

time may be delegated to the Secretary by the President or the Board. 

Delegation of Authority

69. The Board reserves the authority to delegate the powers of any Officer to any other Officer or

agent, notwithstanding any provision in these Bylaws. 

 

LOANS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, CONTRACTS

Loans

70. Without authorization by a resolution of the Board, the Corporation is prohibited from making or

accepting loans in its name, or issuing evidences of indebtedness in its name. The authorization of

the Board for the Corporation to perform these acts can be general or specific. 

Checks, Drafts, Notes

71. All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of

indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation must be signed by a designated Officer or

Officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in a manner as will from time to time be

determined by resolution of the Board. 

Deposits

72. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise used will be deposited to the credit of the Corporation

in banks, trust companies, or other depositories designated by the Board. 

Voting Securities Held by the Corporation

73. The President, or another Officer or agent designated by the Board will, with full power and

authority attend, act, and vote, on behalf of the Corporation, at any meeting of security holders or

interest holders of other corporations or entities in which the Corporation may hold securities or

interests. At that meeting, the President or other delegated agent will have and execute any and all

rights and powers incidental to the ownership of the securities or interests that the Corporation

holds. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 14 of 16



 

Contracts

74. The Board may give authority to any Officer or agent, to make any contract or execute and

deliver any instrument in the name of the Corporation and on its behalf, and that authority may be

general or specific. 

Conflict of Interest by Directors

75. A Director or Officer of the Corporation will be disqualified from voting as a Director or Officer

on a specific matter where that Director or Officer deals or contracts with the Corporation either

as a vendor or purchaser. 

76. A Director or Officer of the Corporation will not be disqualified as a Director or Officer for the

sole reason that the Director or Officer deals or contracts with the Corporation either as a vendor,

purchaser, or otherwise. 

Loans to Employees and Officers

77. The Corporation may lend money to, or guaranty any obligation of, or otherwise assist, any

Officer or employee of the Corporation or of its subsidiary, including any Officer or employee

who is a Director of the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation, whenever, in the

opinion of the Directors, the loan, guaranty or assistance may reasonably be expected to benefit

the Corporation. The loan, guaranty or other assistance may be with or without interest, and may

be unsecured, or secured in such manner as the Board will approve, including, without limitation,

a pledge of shares of the Corporation. Nothing contained in this section is to be construed so as to

deny, limit or restrict the powers of guaranty or warranty of the Corporation at common law or

under any applicable statute. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 15 of 16



Copyright 2002-2019, LegalContracts.com

 

APPENDIX 

 

Glossary

- Bylaws - the purpose of these bylaws (the "Bylaws") is to provide rules governing the internal

management of the Corporation. 

- Chairman of the Board - Once a Board of Directors has been appointed or elected by the

Shareholders, the Board will then elect a chairman (the "Chairman of the Board"). The Chairman

of the Board will act to moderate all meetings of the Board of Directors and any other duties and

obligations as described in these Bylaws. 

- Corporate Officer - A corporate officer (individually the "Officer" and collectively the

"Officers") is any individual acting for or on behalf of the Corporation. An Officer of the

Corporation will usually be appointed to a specific task such as secretary, president, treasurer or

other similar position. One person may hold several offices. The Officers will manage the day-to-

day operations of the Corporation and report to the Board of Directors. 

- Principal Executive Office - The Principal Executive Office for the Corporation is where the

President of the Corporation has an office. 

- Principal Office - The Principal Office of the Corporation is the address designated in the annual

report where the executive offices of the Corporation are located. 

- Principal Place of Business - The Principal Place of Business is the address at which the

Corporation conducts its primary business. 

- Registered Office - The Registered Office is the physical street address within the state where

the registered agent can be contacted during normal business hours for service of process. 

- Record of Shareholders - A Record of Shareholders is the complete record of the owners of

shares of stock in the Corporation. 

Corporate Bylaws Page 16 of 16



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

4 

Legal Right to Occupy      



Notarized     



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

6 

 

Business and Operation Plan 
 

Location and Building Specifications 

    The physical address of our retail shop facility will be: 

501 West F Street 

Turlock, California 95380 

 

Floor Plan 
**Floor Plan is only Preliminary.  
The floor and site plan included in this FRQ show:  

❖ Temperature Controlled Secured Storage 

❖ Office and Administrative 

❖ Shipping and Receiving 

❖ All entrances and exits 

❖ Surrounding Parking 

 

The updated floor plan will include:  

❖ Limited Access Areas and a secured safe 

❖ Secured Storage for product and for records 

❖ Alarm panel and security cameras 

❖ Secured Waste 

❖ Packaging and labeling 

❖ Product Quarantine 

❖ Testing Quarantine  

❖ Product Loading Zone 

❖ Product Intake and Quality Assurance

Quality Assurance Plan 

Company intends to use the following QA methods. 

Part I: Secured Loading   

• Distribution will use secured loading zones that fit the requirement of both the city and the state.  

Part II: Quality Assurance Review  

  (*Due to the FRQ page limit a copy of the procedure is available upon request.) 

• Company will ensure all incoming inventory undergoes a quality assurance review that pays close attention 

to: shipping manifest and batch information, laboratory testing result, packaging and labeling compliance.  

Part II: Testing and Quarantine  

  (*Due to the FRQ page limit a copy of the procedure is available upon request.) 

• Will not accept cannabis good that failed Lab results and will quarantine those needing testing.  

Part III: Packaging and Labeling    

  (*Due to the FRQ page limit a copy of the procedure is available upon request.) 

• Company will only package and label per the allowed limits stated within the city and state regulations.  

Part IV: Transportation  

  (*Due to the FRQ page limit a copy of the procedure is available upon request.) 

• Company will follow all state and city regulations for transportation, including but not limited to: 

Completing Shipping Manifest and sending the bureau,   

Part V: Adverse Events and Recall Procedures 

  (*Due to the FRQ page limit a copy of the procedure is available upon request.) 

• Company will quickly enforce its recall procedures at time of notice.   

Part VI: Record Keeping and Regulatory Compliance 

(A) Record keeping policies and procedures that will ensure the facility complies with regulations. 

(B) Implementation and compliance with the inventory tracking system. 



Tracking Solution 

Track and Trace – Company intends to become compliant with the California Track and Trace System as 

required in California State Regulations.  Upon obtaining our annual state license, we will begin logging all our 

inventory and transactions into California’s track-and-trace system (METRC) which is compliant with both 

QuickBooks Enterprise and BioTrack. 

Electronic Shipping Manifests – Company will ensure detailed shipping manifests are utilized for all orders. 

Transport Manifest – Creating, submitting, and storing compliant transportation manifest noting vehicle, driver, 
and product contained.  

Point of Sale system – QuickBooks Enterprise and BioTrack. 

Inventory Control System – QuickBooks; BioTrack . 

Financial Management – QuickBooks Enterprise also serves as the Financial Management system for order 
placement and payment/cash accountability 

Cash Handling & Financial Management Procedures 

Employee safety and fiscal accountability are paramount to conducting our daily business, as we operate in a cash-
only business. All employees handling cash will be trained on handling procedures before being assigned specific 
job duties. 
 
Internal Cash Storage – A Fireproof burglary safe will be kept in the secured office. 
 
Vendor Payments –       True-up payments are paid to vendors at a pre-set appointment at the main office for 
both licensed business but managed separately to keep records clean, concise and readily available for all city and 
state agency requests. The transactions/payments will be conducted with a finger-printed and cleared authorized 
office manager on behalf of Cal State Ventures2, Inc. and an authorized vendor representative. Both parties will 
engage in a dual-custody process to count and sign-off on the payment. Vendor will securely transport their 
payment via their own transportation. All payments will be logged in QuickBooks (and METRC when accessible). 

 



Retail Premises 

Physical Security Plan 

(Due to the page limit of the RFQ Application, the full Security Plan is Available upon immediate request) 

(For Security Plan please contact Anna Karapetyan at anna@calstateconsult.com or 916-500-3629) 

The security plan included in this FRQ is provided by Crime Alert Security covers the following elements:  

 

Section 1: Physical Elements  
A. Location & Building Specifications  

B. Landscape & Natural Surveillance  

C. Facility Maps  

D. Outdoor Lighting  

E. Perimeter Security  

F. Staff/Vendor Entrance & Parking  

G. Client Entrance & Parking  

H. General Security Risks  
 
 
Section 2: Electronic Security System  

A. Overview  

B. Motion Sensors/Doors  

C. Open/Close Reporting  

D. Controlled Access/Visitors  

E. VASS  

F. Security Audit, Maintenance and Testing  

G. Third Party Monitoring  
 

Section 3: Compliance & Procedures  
A. Hours of Operation  

B. Security Related Opening & Closing Procedure  

C. Onsite Consumption Policy  

D. Secure Storage Area  

E. Client Admittance  

F. Security Staff Procedures & Policies  

G. Money Handling & Limited Cash Operation  

H. Internal Theft Prevention  

I. Robbery & Prevention  

J. Managing Unwelcome Individuals  

K. Incident Management & Emergency Response  

L. Lock-down of Inventory  

M. Reporting & Investigation of an Incident  

N. Cooperating & Communicating with Law Enforcement  

O. Training Drills  

P. Personnel Records  

Q. Facility Maintenance  
 
Section 4: On Site Physical Security Services 

In Summary the perimeter will be secured by alarm, video surveillance and adequate outside 

security lighting.  

Guards  
During operating hours, we will have 1 certified and armed on-site security guard. 

 The Security Company quoted to contract and listed in our Security Plan: Mad Security.  

Fire Security 

The Dispensary will comply with all local fire code requirements.  Fire Prevention is a vital aspect of 

processing safety. As part of Cal State Ventures2, Inc commitment to the safety of our employees, we have 

developed a comprehensive Fire Plan to address how fires will be prevented and managed/contained if they 

do occur. Due to the page limit on the RFQ this is available upon request.  

 

 



Proposed Philanthropy Plan 

 
Community Service & Economic Development  
 
Cal State Ventures2, INC. is committed to enriching the community by providing well-paying and 
highly skilled jobs. Cal State Ventures2, INC. will set a goal of hiring 50% of its workforce from 
residents of the City of Turlock. Cal State Ventures2, INC. will also seek to hire qualified Veterans. 
Job postings and listings will be advertised in local publications and City outlets, including social 
media, as this will ensure the opportunities are reaching a wide range of potential employees within 
the City of Turlock as well as its local surroundings. Moreover, all employees will be eligible for 
health care and dental care as well as vision and retirements after a vesting period. 
 
As a business entering a new marketplace for the city of Turlock, we look forward to the 
opportunity to positively impact the Turlock community on many levels. First, as mentioned we will 
hire local, qualified workers for all possible phases of the warehouse build out.  
 
As a female owned business, we are sensitive to the nature of hiring women and minorities who 
may not have been given the same opportunities within larger corporate industries. We will provide 
fair hiring practices for minorities and women. Our goal is to employ 100% of Turlock residents, 
with the majority being women. 
 
In addition to our initiative to hire Turlock citizens, we will provide an Employment Training 
Program on site at our facility for men and women who desire to learn knowledge and skills 
necessary for employment at our facility or with another dispensary.  
 
Educational Endeavors 

 
Cal State Ventures2, INC. is committed to funding Youth programs in the community. Cal State 
Ventures2, INC. will, upon issuance of the business permit, seek to sponsor youth programs by 
donating to Stanislaus County’s Boys & Girls club. Donations are funded to create programs, such as 
Stanislaus County’s Boys & Girls club that foster innovation and creativity. 
 
In addition to community interactions, we will allocate between $5,000-$10,000 annually or 1% of 
our net profits (whichever is higher) to local charities such as the We Care Program Turlock in order 
to help the homeless get back on their feet.   
 
We look forward to working with the City of Turlock on a Development Agreement to detail these 
various initiatives. Cal State Ventures2, INC. will also be open to follow any regulation the city sees 
fit for it to comply with to better the community. 

 

 

 

 



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

10 

See Floor Plan 

 

 

  





See Site Plan (maybe nix if not enough room) 

 

  





CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

12 

 

Anna & Careli Bio Page 1/2 

  



 

 

 

 

Anna Karapetyan and Careli Galvan-Sulamo 

 
Anna Karapetyan is a leader in the rapidly growing legal cannabis industry with an extensive 

nine-year background of cannabis knowledge and experience, and in 2016 she graduated from CSU 

Sacramento with a BA, Majoring in Journalism and Minoring in Communications. Under the laws 

and regulations of Prop 215, Anna began to manage over 30 corporations and LLCs with respect to 

document management, filings, permit applications, communicating with local enforcement agencies, 

and implementation of standards and procedures. Anna was also instrumental in leading the BOP 

process for nine of the 30 currently licensed dispensaries in Sacramento. 

 

In April of 2017, Anna began to manage the books and Human Resources for Green Stripes 

Services, a cannabis distributor located out of Coalinga, CA. Concurrent to exceeding her job duties, 

Anna noticed the undeniable need and importance of operating a company compliantly. As a result, 

State Public Hearings, keeping up to date with the most current regulations and news, and attending 

cannabis regulatory events became a regular part of Anna’s day on top of her extensive workload. 

Anna was able to lead the company into operating in the legal market with full compliance. 

 

Anna was soon offered the position of Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) for Green Stripes 

Services, whose operations though located in Coalinga, was being managed through a Sacramento 

office. There, Anna developed an effective, yet strict, multi-faceted compliance structure comprised 

of departments that handle contracts, and internal services including an assembly-line structure that 

would efficiently and seamlessly provide the procedures and necessary documentation involving the 

intake, testing, quality assurance, sales, and delivery of products. 

 

Another company under the same ownership of Green Stripes Services, called Bseen, had 

been in dire need of compliance guidance when Anna stepped in to be the CCO for both companies 

under discussion of merging the two. Anna developed a structure and determined it to need 50 

employees with various duties for the company to operate in full compliance; she had successfully 

hired and placed 49 employees within 6 months, all under her management. 

 

Concurrently Anna was a part of a three-person team in managing Kolas, one of the largest 

enterprises in the state of California, managing up to 46 licenses at one time. Anna has been paving a 

road to success for women of all backgrounds in the cannabis industry. As a single mother, there is 

not much that Anna deems more important than empowering women of all backgrounds and 

struggles to follow in her footsteps. 

Anna partnered with the existing Storefront Dispensary of Cannacare in Sacramento in order to save 

their license and relocate the premises address. Anna is also in the process of partnering with another 

dispensary, whose name is not to be disclosed until the beginning of escrow (but that is also located 

in Sacramento). Anna is one of the owners of a Non-Storefront Retailer in South San Francisco, as 

well as holding financial interest in a distribution center under the same ownership, also located in 

South San Francisco. Additionally, Anna is in the process of entering into a partnership with a type-

N Manufacturing license in Sacramento. 

 

Currently, Anna is the CEO of one of the largest Licensing and Compliance Consulting firms 

serving the industries of thc and cbd, and hemp, ranging from the needs in growing and production, 

processing, packaging and labeling, employee training, record-keeping, and transportation. Clients 

from all over California have begun to recognize Anna Karapetyan as one of the most reliable and 

experienced names in the industry. Anna’s reputation precedes her, and she has begun to set her 



 

 

 

 

sights on national and international cannabis compliance. Anna and her team are already performing 

services for clients in the states of Georgia, Florida, New York, and Oklahoma. In November 2018, 

Anna was invited to be an esteemed speaker and contributor at Dartmouth College for a cannabis 

event, focusing on California’s booming regulatory process and how it’s become a trend-setter for 

the entire country. 

Throughout her cannabis career, Anna has been building relationships with professionals 

from many relevant areas to the field of cannabis, including but not limited to state senators like 

Scott Wilk who led the state’s efforts for legalizing hemp production, Natalie Bruton-Yenovkian 

(political consultant and fundraiser at CCIA), city professionals such as Jamey Lee (an 

Administrative Technician for the city of Sacramento), fire departments, police departments, and 

countless cannabis businesses. Through this strategy, Anna met Careli Galvan-Sulamo. 

 

Careli is at her heart and soul an entrepreneur. The owner of two women-owned and operated 

businesses, Careli has dedicated herself to building an empire from the ground up. 

The first business is a CBD Corporation that transformed into a company bringing in over a million 

dollars of revenue in less than a year. Careli has been building relationships with various 

organizations as a result of being involved in the community with her three boys. Some organizations 

and activities include FFA, the Central Valley Hispanic Chamber of Commerce, and sports such as 

wrestling, baseball, and football. Being involved in the community is very important to Careli, and 

she is always looking for ways to give back and be involved. 

 

Currently, Careli is working on a 75,000 square foot facility in Woodland, California. Upon 

successful completion, it will be the largest Manufacturing and Distribution Center in California that 

is operating while fully licensed at the state level with Provisionals. 

 

Careli wants to conduct business in the county where she resides as part of her effort to give 

back to the community. Her goal is to bring more women into a male-dominated industry in her own 

community in order to provide job opportunities for women and minorities with the purpose of 

bettering her surrounding community. She hopes to expand her existing operations closer to her 

home. 

Both Anna and Careli want to see more working moms in the industry, so as to destigmatize cannabis 

and its affiliated businesses. Anna and Careli hope to have a huge positive impact on the community 

of Turlock and the state of California by normalizing marijuana and helping to change the general 

outlook on cannabis and its byproducts. 

 

Anna Karapetyan can be reached via email at Anna@calstateconsult.com and through phone at 916-

500-3629 

 

Careli Galvan-Sulamo can be reached via email at carelisulamo@gmail.com and through phone at 

209-241-2625. 

 



Anna & Careli Bio Page 2/2 

 

  



TEAM RESUME (Personnel/Project Team)  

 

Careli Galvan-Sulamo    Contact: (209) 241-2625   careligsulamo@gmail.com 

Current Involvement with Project: CEO – Chief Financial Officer – Director  

 

Relatable Professional Experiences:  

Country Junction Farms: California    Title: COO Years:  2010 to 2014 

Manage operations; analyzed logistics to ensure company efficiencies; hiring and management of personnel; 

sales; enforcement of procedures; management of incoming overseas shipments. 

West Sac Management Group: Sacramento, CA   Title: CEO:  Years: 2013 to 2017 

Marketing the company; creating and managing clientele; analyzing current markets; planning for companies   

future growth and ventures; strategic planning to match market/economy trends. 

Careli & Co.: Sacramento, CA     Title: CEO:  Years: 2017 to Current 

Establish Product lines depending on current supply and demand; strategic product placement to maximize 

revenue; Establish internal company knowledge of state and federal CBD regulation. 

 

Achievements: Owner of two separate all-woman owned and operated businesses; Built great relationships 

with many facets of surrounding community.  

Skills: Cannabis Compliance Proficiency; Hiring and Management; Marketing and Advertisement; 

Communication (Public Speaking and Internal Communication) 

References: Natalie Bruton – Yenovkian (916) 396 – 9738   

 

Anna Karapetyan    Contact: (916) 500-3629   anna@calstateconsult.com 

Current Involvement with Project: Director 

Relatable Professional Experiences:  
Management of Various Corps and LLCs; California  Title: Licensing Specialist   Years:  2012 to 2017 

Complete and file various company applications and fees; Implement standards and procedures; complete, 

organize and manage documents; communicate with local enforcement agencies such as police dept & city govt. 

Green Stripes Services, LLC; Sacramento, CA  Title: HR & Payroll    Years: 2017 to 2018 

Process paychecks; provide new employee training paperwork; handle internal conflict in a confidential manor.  

Green Stripes Services, LLC; Sacramento, CA  Title: CCO   Years: 2017 to 2019 

Oversee distribution and ensure operating compliantly; oversee compliance team in a variety of different 

operations such as contract management, SOP creation and implementation and product intake; maintain updated 

internal documents and knowledge of California State law relating to cannabis.  

Cal State Consulting, LLC; Sacramento, CA  Title: CEO   Years: 2019 to Current 

Budget expenses and expand business throughout the state; market services at events; establish new clientele; 

Oversee team that cover the following cannabis services: licensing, OSHA Health and Safety, Compliance, and 

specializes in distribution.  

 

Achievements: Established and runs an all-woman cannabis compliance company offering full spectrum 

cannabis services; quickly rose to the top of a male-dominated industry  

Education: California State University of Sacramento – B.A (Journalism/Communications) 

Skills: Cannabis Compliance Proficiency; Hiring and Management; Editing and technical writing; marketing an 

advertisement; Communication (Public Speaking and Internal Communication) 

 

Profession References: Natalie Bruton – Yenovkian (916) 396 – 9738   

    Sophia Herrera Sherrera@connectedca.com  
  



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

16 

TEAM RESUME (Personnel/Project Team Cont.)  

 

Andreas Henriksson    Contact: (916) 298-7543   andreash85@gmail.com 

Current Involvement with Project: Operations Manager 

 

Relatable Professional Experiences:  
Paper Planes Extracts: Sacramento, CA  Title: CFO/COO     Years:  2016 to Current 

Oversee operations and accounting; Assist in securing local and state license; assist in reconstruct operations; 

tracking; quality control procedures; and business structures; maintain updated internal knowledge of State law 

relating to cannabis.  

Choices Distribution: Sacramento, CA  Title: COO      Years: 2016 to 2019 

Oversee operations within warehouse – receiving, packing and labeling, testing, fulfillment, and transportation; 

Implement procedures to ensure vendor and customer satisfaction. 

Golden Health and Wellness: Sacramento, CA Title: Store Manager     Years: 2016 to 2017 

Manage cannabis retail store – schedule employees, ordering product, cleanliness of store; Inventory procedures 

and improvement; marketing strategies and improvement; cash handling (rectified mismanagement of cash 

handling); * increased store revenue by over 50 percent 

Traditions Senior Management: Tampa, FL Title: Operations Analyst/Manager   Years: 2013 to 2016 

Oversee operations for over 30 locations of Skilled Nursing Facilities; Salesforce software buildout for call 

center and research department; manage call center-scheduling employees; Manage marketing research team 

 

Achievements: Built distribution company into a profitable venture; increased revenue of cannabis storefront 

retailer by over 50%; restricted operations at a manufacturing company to increase revenue 

Education: St. Petersburg College – B.A (Healthcare Administration and Services) 

Skills: Understanding of cannabis manufacturing and distribution operations; Cannabis product knowledge; 

QuickBooks; Salesforce; Sourcing Cannabis, cannabis equipment knowledge; and packaging knowledge 

Profession References: Adam Garff – (727) 686 - 6175 
     
 

Ryan DeArkland    Contact: (916) 502 – 6631 ryan@choicesdistribution.com 

Current Involvement with Project: Operations Manager 

Relatable Professional Experiences:  
Green Stripes Services, LLC; Sacramento, CA Title: CEO    Years:  2017 to 2018 

Budget Expenses and expand business 

FOCO, Inc.: Sacramento, CA   Title: HR & Payroll    Years: 2017 to 2018 

Budget Expenses and expand business 

 

Achievements: 12 years of diversified experience in Cannabis; part of one of the first traditional cannabis 

distribution companies in the State of California which then went on to acquire multiples state licenses.  

 

Education: California State University of Sacramento – B.A (Science in Accounting) 

Skills: Cannabis Compliance Proficiency; Hiring and Management  

 

Creating and executing companies Operation Strategy; 

References: Joe Karapetyan (415) 572 -8742 

 



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

14 

Andreas & Ryan Bio 1 Pg Only 

 

 

  



Andreas Henriksson and Ryan DeArkland 

Andreas Henriksson graduated with a bachelor’s degree in Healthcare Management from St. 
Petersburg College of Florida in 2014. Upon finishing his education, Andreas’ career took off at one of 
Florida’s largest Nursing Home Management companies, Traditions Senior Management. There, he 
worked directly under the tutelage of the Founder and President, where he performed a variety of job 
duties and responsibilities over the years. The four years Andreas spent with the company provided him 
with experience in accounting, management, market research, and financial analysis.  

Due to his accumulated experience and relationship with the owner of Traditions Senior 
Management, Andreas was given the opportunity to relocate to California and run their cannabis 
operations as well as to provide finance management; this included multiple retail and cultivation 
facilities. Upon beginning his career in cannabis, Andreas transferred his experience from a large legal 
corporation into an industry that was still operating in a gray area. There, he was able to transform their 
operations into the legal market with a professional compliance status that would ultimately increase 
revenue.  

By hiring reliable and able employees, implementing accounting and inventory procedures, and 
changing marketing strategy, Andreas was able to increase revenue by 120% within the first year. This 
led to Andreas forming valuable business relationships, with whom he founded and operated a fourteen 
(14) million dollar in yearly revenue cannabis packaging and distribution company. In 2016, Andreas 
joined the team at Paper Planes to help reconstruct the company’s operations, accounting needs, and 
compliance requirements in keeping up with California’s ever-changing statewide cannabis regulations. 

Andreas is excited to be a part of the legal cannabis industry and hopes to continually see its 
growth having re-sounding positive impacts in every aspect of the community. 

Ryan DeArkland comes from an extensive background in the cannabis industry. With more than 
12 years of diversified experience in both the cannabis and medical industries, Mr. DeArkland has held 
several accounting and leadership roles at a variety of different companies. Ryan created and executed 
Operational Strategies for Green Stripes Services and FoCo, with the latter being the manufacturing 
company responsible for the well-known brands of DabFace, HiFi, Cocoa Meds, and MediX Oils.  

While at Green Stripes Services, Ryan was part of one of the first traditional cannabis 
distribution companies in the state of California, which then went on to acquire multiple state licenses. 
When Green Stripes Services, operating under the name of Choices Distribution, merged with another 
distribution company (called BSeen) under the same ownership, Ryan took charge in managing the 
financials for the resulting much larger company.  

Ryan’s primary focus is on building a strategically integrated supply chain that will not only scale, 
but innovate to set the new standard, rapidly throughout the state of California and beyond. Ryan holds 
a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from California State University Sacramento. 

Andreas Henriksson can be reached via email at andreash85@gmail.com and by phone at 916-
298-7543. 

Ryan DeArkland can be reached via email at ryan@choicesdistribution.com and by phone at 
916-502-6631. 



 

 

Economics 1 

 

  



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

18 

Economics 2 

 

  



Economics 3 

 

  



CANNABIS  

MICROBUSINESS 
RFQ – Test 

 
 

20 

Economics 4 or careli P & L  

 







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

ACTION ITEMS 9C & 9D 

 

THE STAFF REPORT, 

RESOLUTION, AND 

RELATED DOCUMENTS 

FOR ACTION ITEMS 9C & 

9D WILL BE PROVIDED 

UNDER SEPARATE COVER. 

JLand
Text Box
STAFF IS REQUESTING ACTION ITEMS 9C & 9D BE REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA.


	Agenda
	3A
	6A
	6B
	6C
	6D
	6E
	6F
	8A
	8B
	8C
	9A
	9B
	9C & 9D



